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Sources

The Administration and Cost of Elections

Project (ACE project), 1999,  joint project

between International IDEA, United Nations

and International Foundation for Election

Systems, www.aceproject.org. 

US Central Intelligence Agency, 2000. The

World Factbook. Washington, D.C. 

US Central Intelligence Agency, 2001. The

World Factbook. Washington, D.C. 

Freedom in the World: The Annual Survey of

Political Rights and Civil Liberties 1972–1973

to 2000–2001. New York: Freedom House,

www.freedomhouse.org. 

International Foundation for Electoral

Systems (IFES), Washington, D.C, United

States, www.ifes.org. 

International IDEA. 1997. Voter Turnout from

1945 to 1997: a Global Report on Political

Participation, 2nd ed. Stockholm:

International IDEA. www.idea.int/turnout.

Nohlen  D, Grotz F and Hartmann C (eds),

2001, Elections in Asia & the Pacific – A Data

Handbook, London ,Oxford University Press.

Nohlen D, Kreenerich M, Thibaut B, (eds),

1999. Elections in Africa – A Data Handbook,

London, Oxford University Press.

Inter-Parliamentary Union (IPU), Geneva,

Switzerland, www.ipu.org. 

Reynolds, A. and B. Reilly. 1997. The

International IDEA Handbook on Electoral

System Design. Stockholm: International

IDEA. 

The Electoral Process Information Collection

Project (EPIC project) joint project between

International IDEA, UNDP and IFES,

www.epicproject.org. 

United Nations. 2000. 1998 Demographic

Yearbook. New York. 

United Nations. 1998. 1996 Demographic

Yearbook. New York. 

United Nations. 1999. World Population

Prospects: The 1998 Revision (Volume I:

Comprehensive Tables and Volume II: The

Sex and Age Distribution of the World

Population). New York. 

UN Development Programme. 1999. Human

Development Report. New York. 

General Sources
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A L B A N I A
The International Foundation for Election Systems
(IFES) field office, Albania.  

A L G E R I A  
Embassy of Sweden, Algeria.

A N D O R R A
Consell General del Principat d’Andorra, Andorra. 

A N G U I L L A
Electoral Office, Anguilla. 

A N T I G U A  A N D  B A R B U D A  
Electoral Office, Antigua & Barbuda.

A R G E N T I N A
Camara Nacional Electoral, Argentina 

www.pjn.gov.ar/cne

A R M E N I A  
Central Electoral Committee, Armenia.

www.am.elections.am  

A R U B A  
Electoral Council of Aruba, Aruba.

A U S T R A L I A
Australian Electoral Commission (AEC), Australia.

www.aec.gov.au  

A U S T R I A
Wahlanbelägenheiten, Bundesministerium fur
Inneres, Austria. 

http://ln-inter11.bmi.gv.at/web/bmiwebp.nsf
/AllPages/WA991217000011 

A Z E R B A I JA N
Central Election Commission, Azerbaijan.

www.cec.gov.az 

B A H A M A S
Parliamentary Registration Department, Ministry of
National Security, Bahamas.

B A N G L A D E S H  
Bangladesh Election Commission, Bangladesh.

www.bd-ec.org/index.php3 

B A R B A D O S
Electoral and Boundaries Commission, Barbados.

www.bgis.gov.bb  

B E L A R U S  
Central Electoral Commission of Belarus, Belarus.

www.rec.gov.by 

B E L G I U M
Ministry of Interior, Belgium.

www.belgium.fgov.be

B E L I Z E  
Elections and Boundaries Department, Ministry of the
Public Service, Labour and Civil Society, Belize.

www.belize-elections.org 

B E N I N  
Commission Electorale Nationale Autonome (CENA),
Benin.

B O L I V I A  
Corte Nacional Electoral, Bolivia.

www.bolivian.com/cne 

Sources

Country-specific Sources
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B O S N I A  A N D  H E R Z EG OV I N A  
University of Essex, Department of Government,
United Kingdom.

www.essex.ac.uk/elections 

O S C E  M ission to Bosnia and Herzegovina.
www.oscebih.org/elections/eng/elections.htm

B OT S WA N A  
Independent Electoral Commission of Botswana.

www.gov.bw/elections 

B R A Z I L  
Tribunal Superior Electoral, Brazil.

www.tse.gov.br

B U L G A R I A  
Central Electoral Commission, Bulgaria.

www.parliament.bg 

B U R K I N A  FA S O  
Comission Electorale Nationale Independante, Burkina
Faso.

www.ceni.bf 

C A M B O D I A  
Electoral Commission, Pohnpei State Government,
Cambodia.

The Asia Foundation, Cambodia.

C A M E R O O N
Prime Minister’s Cabinet, Cameroon. 

C A N A D A
Elections Canada, Canada. 

www.elections.ca

C A P E  V E R D E
National Electoral Commission, Cape Verde.

C E N T R A L  A F R I C A N  R E P U B L I C  
United Nations Development Programme.

www.undp.org

C H A D
United Nations Development Programme (UNDP),
Chad. 

C H I L E  
Servicio Electoral de Chile, Chile.

www.servel.cl 

C O LO M B I A  
Consejo Nacional Electoral, Colombia.

C O O K  I S L A N D S  
Electoral Office, Cook Islands.

C O S TA  R I C A  
Tribunal Supremo de Elecciones, Costa Rica. 

www.tse.go.cr  

C Ô T E  D ’ I VO I R E
The United Nations Development Programme.

www.undp.org 

C R OAT I A  
Election Commission of Croatia, Croatia.

www.izbori.hr

C Y P R U S  
Cyprus Central Electoral Service, Ministry of Interior,
Cyprus.

C Z E C H  R E P U B L I C
Department of the General Administration, Ministry of
Interior, Czech Republic. 

www.volby.cz

D E N M A R K  
Ministry of the Interior, Denmark.

www.inm.dk 

D J I B O U T I  
International Foundation for Election Systems (IFES),
United States.

www.ifes.org

D O M I N I C A
Office of the Clerk, House of Assembly, Dominica.

D O M I N I C A N  R E P U B L I C
Central Electoral Board, Dominican Republic.

www.jce.do

E C U A D O R  
Embassy of Ecuador, Stockholm.

EG Y P T  
Embassy of Egypt, Sweden.
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E L  S A LVA D O R  
Tribunal Supremo Electoral, El Salvador.

www.tse.gob.sv 

E Q U ATO R I A L  G U I N E A  
United Nations Development Programme (UNDP).

www.undp.org

E S TO N I A  
Riigikogu Valimine, Estonia.

www.vvk.ee 

F E D E R A L  R E P U B L I C  O F  Y U G O S L AV I A  
University of Essex, Department of Government,
United Kingdom.

www.essex.ac.uk/elections 

F I J I
Office of the Supervisor of Elections, Fiji. 

F I N L A N D
Ministry of Justice, Finland. 

www.om.fi

F R A N C E  
Conseil Constitutionnel, France. 

G E O R G I A  
Central Electoral Commission, Georgia.

www.cec.gov.ge 

G E R M A N Y
Der Bundeswahlleiter, Germany.

www.destatis.de/wahlen

G H A N A
Electoral Commission of Ghana, Ghana. 

G R E E C E  
Embassy of the Hellenic Republic, Sweden.   Ministry
of Interior, Greece.

G R E N A D A  
Parliamentary Elections Office, Grenada.

www.spiceisle.com/elections99/electora 

G U AT E M A L A  
Tribunal Supremo Electoral, Guatemala.

www.tse.org.gt

G U I N E A  
United Nations Development Programme, (UNDP).

www.undp.org

G U I N E A  B I S S A U  
United Nations Development Programme, (UNDP)

www.undp.org

G U YA N A
United Nations Development Programme (UNDP),
Guyana. 

www.undp.org 

H A I T I  
Organisation of American States (OAS), United
States.

www.oas.org

H O N D U R A S  
Tribunal Nacional de Elecciones, Honduras.

H U N G A RY  
Secretariat for the Association for Central and Eastern
European Electoral Officials (ACEEEO)
Central Data Processing, Registration and Election
Office, Ministry of Interior, Hungary.

www.aceeeo.com 
www.election.hu 

I C E L A N D  
Ministry of Justice, Iceland.

www.brunnur.stjr.is/interpro/dkm/dkm.nsf/pages/eng-
lish

I N D I A  
Election Commission of India, India.
www.eci.gov.in  

I N D O N E S I A  
Indonesian Electoral Commission (KPU), Indonesia.

I R E L A N D  
Ministry of Environment and Local Governance,
Ireland.

www.environ.ie 

I S R A E L  
The editors of the Knesset Website, Israel.

www.knesset.gov.il/elections01/eindex.html  

Country-specific Sources
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I TA LY
Department for Political Science and Sociology,
University of Florence (DISPO), Florence

www.unifi.it 

JA M A I C A  
Electoral Office, Jamaica.

www.eoj.com.jm 

JA PA N
International Affairs Division for Local Authorities,
Ministry of Public Management, Home Affairs, Posts
and Telecommunications, Japan.  

K A Z A K H S TA N  
International Foundation for Election Systems (IFES),
United States.

www.ifes.org

K E N YA  
Electoral Commission of Kenya, Kenya.

www.kenyaweb.com/politics/electoral.html

K I R I B AT I  
Electoral Office, Ministry of Home Affairs and Rural
Development, Kiribati.

K Y R G Y Z S TA N  
Central Election Commission, Kyrgyzstan.

www.cec.bishkek.su

L AT V I A  
Central Electoral Commission, Latvia.

www.saeima.lanet.lv/cvsetv 

L E B A N O N  
Lebanese Center for Policy Studies, Lebanon.

www.lcps-lebanon.org/resc/democ

L E S OT H O  
Independent Electoral Commission of Lesotho.

L I E C H T E N S T E I N  
Ministry of Justice, Liechtenstein.

L I T H U A N I A  
Central Election Committee, Lithuania
Inter-Parliamentary Union, Geneva.

www.lrs.lt/rinkimai 
www.ipu.org 

L U X E M B O U R G  
Chambre des Deputes, Luxembourg. 

M A L AW I
Electoral Commission, Malawi. 

M A L AY S I A  
Electoral Commission of Malaysia, Malaysia.

www.spr.gov.my 

M A L D I V E S  
Office of the Commissioner of Elections, Maldives.

M A L I  
Ministère de l’administration Territoriale et des
Collectivités Locales, Mali.

M A LTA
Electoral Office, Malta. 

M A U R I T I U S  
Elections Commission, Mauritius.

www.ncb.intnet.mu/pmo   

M E X I C O  
Federal Electoral Institute, Mexico.

M I C R O N E S I A  ( F E D E R AT E D  S TAT E S  O F )
National Electoral Commission, Federated States of
Micronesia. 

M O N A C O  
Parliament of Monaco, Monaco.

M O N G O L I A  
Parliament of Mongolia, Mongolia.

www.parl.gov.mn
Inter-Parliamentary Union, Geneva.

www.ipu.org
Embassy of Mongolia to the United Kingdom, UK.

M O R O C C O  
National Democratic Institute, Morocco.

www.ndi.org/worldwide/mena/morocco/morocco.asp

M O Z A M B I Q U E
Secretariado Técnico de Administracão Eleitoral
(STAE), Mozambique. 
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N A M I B I A
Electoral Commission of Namibia, Namibia. 

N A U R U
Returning Officer of Nauru & Secretary of State,
Government of Nauru, Nauru. 

N E PA L  
Election Commission of Nepal, Nepal.

www.election-commission.org.np/ 

N E T H E R L A N D S  
National Election Board, Netherlands.

N E W  Z E A L A N D  
Electoral Commission, New Zealand.

www.elections.org.nz/elections

N I C A R A G U A  
Consejo Supremo Electoral, Nicaragua.

www.cse.gob.ni 

N I G E R  
Inter-Parliamentary Union, Geneva

www.ipu.org

N I G E R I A  
Independent National Electoral Commission (INEC),
Nigeria.

N O RWAY
Ministry of Local Government and Regional
Development, Norway.

www.stortinget.no 

PA K I S TA N
Election Commission of Pakistan, Pakistan. 

PA L A U  
Office of the Election Commission, Palau. 

PA N A M A  
Tribunal Electoral, Panama.

www.tribunal-electoral.gob.pa 

PA P U A  N E W  G U I N E A  
Electoral Commission, Papua New Guinea.

PA R A G U AY  
Tribunal Superior de Justicia Electoral.

www.tsje.gov.py 

P E R U
Transparencia, Peru. 

www.transparencia.org

P H I L I P P I N E S  
Commission on Elections, Philippines.

www.codewan.com.ph/peoplespower/comelec 

P O L A N D  
National Electoral Office, Poland.

P O RT U G A L
Secretariado Tecnico para Assuntos para o Processo
Eleitoral (STAPE), Portugal. 

www.stape.pt  

R O M A N I A  
Central Electoral Bureau, Romania.

www.kappa.ro/guv/bec/ceb96.html 

R U S S I A  
Section for International Cooperation, Central Election
Commission, Russia.

www.fci.ru

RWA N D A
Commission Electorale Nationale, Rwanda. 

S A N  M A R I N O
Ufficio Comunicazione Istituzionale e Relazioni con il
Pubblico (U.C.I.R.P.), State Office for Elections,
Ministry for Internal Affairs, San Marino

www.elezioni.sm  

S Ã O  TO M É  A N D  P R I N C I P E
United Nations Development Programme (UNDP),
São Tomé & Principe. 

S E N EG A L  
Interview with Mr. Momar Diop, Senior Programme
Officer at the Capacity-Building Programme,
International IDEA.

S EYC H E L L E S  
Electoral Commission, Seychelles.

Country-specific Sources
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S I E R R A  L E O N E  
National Electoral Commission, Sierra Leone.

Report on the Work of the Interim National Electoral
Commission.

(INEC) 1994 - 1996. Freetown, December, 1996..

S I N G A P O R E
Elections Department, Government of Singapore,
Singapore. 

www.gov.sg/pmo/elections/index.html

S LOVA K I A
Parliamentary Institute, Chancellery of the National
Council of the  Slovak Republic, Slovakia.

www.nrsr.sk 

S LOV E N I A  
Inter-Parliamentary Union, Switzerland.

www.ipu.org

S O LO M O N  I S L A N D S  
Electoral Commission, Solomon Islands.

S O U T H  A F R I C A  
Independent Electoral Commission, South Africa.

www.elections.org.za  

S PA I N  
Ministry of Interior, Spain.

www.mir.es

S R I  L A N K A  
Department of Elections, Elections Secretariat, Sri
Lanka.

S T.  K I T T S  A N D  N E V I S  
Electoral Office, St. Kitts and Nevis.

S T.  L U C I A  
Electoral Department, Government of St. Lucia.

S T.  V I N C E N T  A N D  T H E  G R E N A D I N E S
Electoral Office, St. Vincent & the Grenadines.  

S U R I N A M E  
Technical State Commission Election 2000, Suriname.

S W E D E N  
Electoral Unit at the Swedish Taxboard (from July
2001 the Election Commission of Sweden) Sweden.

www.val.se 

S W I T Z E R L A N D
Section of Political Rights, Swiss Federal Chancery,
Switzerland.

www.admin.ch/ch/d/pore/index 

TA I WA N  ( R E P U B L I C  O F  C H I N A )
Central Election Commission, Taipei, Taiwan.

www.cec.gov.tw 

TA J I K I S TA N  
Inter-Parliamentary Union, Switzerland.

www.ipu.org

TA N Z A N I A
United Nations Development Programme (UNDP),
Tanzania.

www.undp.org

T H A I L A N D  
Inter-Parliamentary Union, Geneva.

www.ipu.org

TO N G A  
The Supervisor of Elections, Prime Minister’s Office,
Tonga.

T R I N I D A D  A N D  TO B A G O
Electoral Office, Trinidad & Tobago. 

T U N I S I A  
Embassy of Tunisia, Sweden.

Embassy of Tunisia, Algeria.

T U R K EY
Inter-Parliamentary Union, Switzerland.

www.ipu.org

T U VA L U  
Electoral Office, Tuvalu.

U G A N D A  
Election Commission of Uganda, Uganda.

U K R A I N E  
Central Electoral Commission and Committee of
Voters, Ukraine.

www.cvk.ukrpack.net 

U N I T E D  K I N G D O M  
UK Independent Electoral Commission.

www.electoralcommission.co.uk 
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U R U G U AY  
Corte Electoral, Uruguay.

U S A  
Federal Election Commission.

www.fec.gov 

U Z B E K I S TA N  
International Foundation for Election Systems (IFES),
United States.

www.ifes.org

VA N U AT U  
Vanuatu Electoral Commission, Vanuatu.

V E N E Z U E L A  
Consejo Nacional Electoral, Venezuela.

www.cne.gov.ve 

W E S T E R N  S A M OA  
Office of the Clerk of the Legislative Assembly,
Samoa.

Y E M E N  
Transparency Yemen, Yemen.

www.TransparencyYemen.org.ye  

Z A M B I A
Electoral Commission of Zambia, Zambia.

Z I M B A B W E  
Zimbabwe Election Support Network, Zimbabwe.

www.zesn.org.zw

The work of this publication builds on the

first and second editions of the Voter

Turnout Reports. Please refer to these two

editions for an additional list of general as

well as country-specific sources.

This list is also available on our website at

www.idea.int/voter_turnout/intro_sources_

and_definitions.html 

Country-specific Sources
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